[image: ]                    QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS FORM 
	PSP LMR upgrade to PA-STARNET RFP 6100033543  

	Questions Received 05/07/2015

	
	Questions Received
	
	Answers

	1. 
	Section IV-3.C.5 Table 2
Please provide the full address (or geographic coordinates) for each building location.
	 
	Section IV-3 C(5), Table 2, has been amended to provide the physical addressed for each building location.  Please refer to Addendum Number 3 for the revised Table 2.

	2. 
	Pgs. 51 & 52, Table 3
A. Please clarify how many of the 26,691 radios listed are capable of multi-ban operation in both VHF – 700/800 MHz.
B. Also are vendor’s required to provide radio options and pricing as part of this procurement or will there be another procurement for radios at a later date?
	 
	A.  The following is a list of equipment capable of multi-ban operation in both VHF and 700/800 MHz:
Mobile radios:    2050
Control stations:  110
Portable radios:   130

B.  Offerors shall provide options and pricing for the options listed in Section IV-6. Options.

	3. 
	Section IV-3. C-8, i – v.
Based on the Offeror’s extensive experience in developing frequency plans, particularly in the VHF band, would the Commonwealth consider moving to a time & material basis for frequency plan finalization after a set amount of time & work performed by the vendor?
	
	No, the Commonwealth will not consider moving to a time & material basis for frequency plan finalization after a set amount of time & work performed by the Offeror.

	4. 
	Will the State be using a professional consulting firm to review and evaluate the vendor responses of this RFP? If so, please provide the name of the firm?
	
	No, the Commonwealth will not be using a professional consulting firm to review and evaluate the proposals.

	5. 
	Section I-19
Please provide the State’s schedule / timeline post vendor submittal regarding future vendor meetings, oral presentations, negotiation meetings and awards.
	
	Please refer to RFP Section I-19. Best and Final Offer, which states that oral presentations are “tentatively schedule for the week of July 6, 2015.”  Please refer to Addendum 3, which was posted to the eMarketplace website on May 19, 2015.

The Commonwealth cannot provide a schedule/timeline for post vendor submittal activities beyond what is set forth above, as several factors drive the evaluation, negotiation and award of the procurement.

	6. 
	Calendar of Events and  Section 1-11
We are requesting a 120 day extension to provide a comprehensive solution for the statewide network.










	
	
	While the Commonwealth does not wish to extend the due date for the proposals 120 days, the proposal due date has been extended from June 1, 2015, to June 15, 2015.  Please refer to Addendum 1, which was posted to the eMarketplace website on May 8, 2015.

Due to the reuse of existing infrastructure including the existing microwave transport network and tower infrastructure, the Commonwealth believes that the allotted timeline is sufficient to support a viable a response to this RFP.



	7. 
	Calendar of Events, and Section I-9
We are requesting a 2 week extension for vendors to submit additional questions.
	
	The Commonwealth has extended the due date for the submission of questions to the Issuing Officer from May 7, 2015, to May 15, 2015.  The Commonwealth will post answers to the eMarketplace website no later than May 20, 2015.  Please refer to Addendum 1, which was posted to the eMarketplace website on May 8, 2015.

	8. 
	Appendix A
Appendix A – IT Contract Terms and Conditions – Section 3(C) – This clause appears to be missing text. A blank space has been added by Offeror to Section 3(c) below.  Please provide any missing text. Developed Works or Developed Materials. Except for Contractor’s internal communications relating to Services of this Contract that are not delivered to the Commonwealth, all documents, sketches, drawings, designs, works, papers, files, reports, computer programs, computer documentation, data, records, software, samples or any other literary works, works of authorship, or tangible material authored or prepared by Contractor in carrying out the obligations and services under this Contract, without limitation. The terms are used herein interchangeably.
	
	Appendix A, IT Contract Terms and Conditions, sets forth, at Section 3(c), what is considered Developed Works or Developed Materials for the purposes of the RFP.  The introductory phrase, beginning with the word “Except” and ending at the first comma, sets forth the only information that is not considered Developed Works or Developed Materials.  All of the text relating to the definition is within the document.

	9. 
	Appendix A, Section 4(b)
Appendix A – IT Contract Terms and Conditions – Section 4(b) – The radio system incorporates hardware and software, including, but not limited to, personal computers, servers, and laptops.  Please confirm the Commonwealth does not wish to procure those items separately, as they are integrated components of the radio system.
	
	Appendix A, IT Contract Terms and Conditions specifically states in subsection (b) of Section 4, Contract Scope:

Except as set out in this Contract, the Contractor shall not offer for sale or provide Commonwealth agencies with any hardware or software (i.e., personal computers, file servers, laptops, personal computer packaged software, etc.)

Offerors are to propose only those items set forth in the RFP and Appendix C, Cost Matrix.  Please refer to Sections II-3, IV-1 B, and IV-3 C for examples of language within the RFP evidencing the intent that the Offeror is to provide hardware and software that is integral to the proposed solution.


	10. 
	Appendix A, Section 55
Please confirm Exhibit A - Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Business Associate Agreement is not applicable to this procurement.
	
	Appendix A, IT Contract Terms and Conditions specifically states in subsection (c) of Section 34, Sensitive Information:  

It is understood that Exhibit A [Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Business Associate Agreement] is only applicable if indicated in the procurement documents.

Neither the RFP, nor its other appendices, refer to Exhibit A; therefore, Exhibit A does not apply.

	11. 
	Exhibit A
Please confirm Exhibit A - Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Business Associate Agreement is not applicable to this procurement.
	
	Please refer to the answer to Question Number 10.

	12. 
	Section I-23;Appendix A, Section 9
Section I-23 provides for a five (5) year contract with five (5) one (1) year extensions. Exhibit A, Section 9 calls for a three (3) month extensions.
Please clarify.
	
	Section I-23, Term of Contract, refers to the length of the actual contract.  

Appendix A, IT Contract Terms and Conditions, at Section 9, Option to Extend, refers to extending a contract at the end of its term for an additional three (3) months in the event the Commonwealth has not yet finalized a new contract and still requires services until the new contract is finalized..

	13. 
	Please provide a list of user agencies and personnel will be represented with voting rights on the evaluation committee.
	
	[bookmark: _GoBack]The Commonwealth does not disclose this information.  Please refer to Section 708(b)(26) of the Right-to-Know Law, (Exceptions to public records) which prohibits the identity of evaluation committee members.  See 65 P.S. § 67.708(b)(26).

	14. 
	Section IV-5A and Section IV-5C
Please detail the specific requirements for “maintain and repair all LMR systems, equipment, hardware, and software” stated in IV-5A and C. Please provide a detailed list of the LMR systems to which this requirement applies.
	
	Please refer to the Answer to Question Number 24 for a description of what is meant by LMR requirements

	15. 
	Is the Stage 1 Pilot funding appropriated?
	
	This question is beyond the scope of the RFP.

	16. 
	Is the Stage 2 Pilot funding appropriated?
	
	This question is beyond the scope of the RFP.

	17. 
	What counties beyond the Stage 2 Pilot have funding appropriated?
	
	This question is beyond the scope of the RFP.

	18. 
	Advise where the funding for the Land Mobile Radio System Upgrades was allocated from? The budget? A grant?
	
	The Land Mobile Radio System Upgrades subject to this RFP will be procured utilizing Commonwealth funding.  No grants or federal funding are involved.

	19. 
	Calendar of Events and Section 1-11
We request a 60 day extension to the bid due date
	
	Please refer to the Answer to Question Number 6.

	20. 
	Section 1-12
Can we provide the Technical and Cost submittal in one CD Rom as long as they are in separate folder?








	
	
	Yes, pursuant to Section I-12 of the RFP, Proposals, the Offeror shall provide two (2) complete electronic versions of the Offeror’s proposal submissions, each on one CD Rom or USB.  On each CD Rom or USB, create a separate file folder for each submittal (i.e. Technical; Cost; SDB).  Additionally, provide a redacted version of the complete proposal in a separate file folder entitled “Proposal Documents Redacted PSP LMR RFP6100033543” on each CD Rom or USB.

	21. 
	RFP Parts I-IV
Will the Commonwealth please provide the "...detailed records of the previous coverage testing of the buildings" referenced in RFP Parts I-IV, Pg. 62 of 70, (x)(a) and access to the listed buildings for possible testing as soon as possible?

	
	Yes, Addendum 3 has added Appendix N, Building Coverage, which will be available to all Offerors that submitted a nondisclosure agreement.  Appendix N provides the detailed records of previous testing of buildings as well as additional clarification, technical design details and drawings. Please refer to Addendum Number 3, which was posted to the DGS   eMarketplace website on May 20, 2015.

	22. 
	Is there a budget or projected cost estimate on this proposal? If yes, what is it? 

	
	The Commonwealth does not provide budget or projected cost information.   

	23. 
	Section I-23; Appendix A, Section 1 
On or around what date is the work expected to start?
	
	The Commonwealth wishes to begin the project as soon as practicable after award of the resulting contract. 

According to Section I-23, Term of Contract,  “[t]he term of the contract will commence on the Effective Date….,”  

Section 1, Term and Scope of Contract, of Appendix A, IT Contract Terms and Conditions, at subsection (a) provides that the:

…term of the Contract shall commence on the Effective Date and shall end on the Expiration Date identified in the Contract, subject to the other provisions of the Contract.  The Effective Date shall be: a) the date the Contract has been fully executed by the Contractor and by the Commonwealth and all approvals required by Commonwealth contracting procedures have been obtained or b) the date referenced in the Contract, whichever is later.

Further, Subsection 1(c) provides that:

The Contractor shall not start performance until all of the following have occurred:  (1) the Effective Date has arrived; (2) the Contractor has received a copy of the fully executed Contract; and (3) the Contractor has received a Purchase Order or other written notice to proceed signed by the Contracting Officer.

	24. 24
	IV-5, Section A (Page 65 of 70)
Section IV-5, Warranty and Maintenance states the following:

“This section provides requirements for the warranty, extended warranty, maintenance, and support of the proposed system and subsystems.

A.	General
The selected Offeror shall maintain and repair  all LMR systems, equipment, hardware, and software throughout the implementation/migration and up to five (5) years from the Effective Date and any renewal years opted for by the Commonwealth. This includes all warranty and maintenance items listed in this Section IV-6. At the end of that period the Commonwealth shall be provided with the latest software and hardware updates and be installed by the selected Offeror.  Any existing manufacturer warranties in effect after the term for the contract shall be in the name of the Commonwealth.”

Please define what the Commonwealth considers “all LMR systems.”
	
	LMR systems are considered to be system central switching hardware, software, and firmware typically in a redundant configuration, commonly referred to as system cores or regional operations centers (ROCs) and base station sites including RF base stations hardware and firmware provided by the selected Offeror including ancillary equipment required to connect to the system central switch(s) such as site routers and switches.  “All LMR systems” as related to this question shall only apply to new systems being provided by the Offeror in response to this RFP.

	25. 
	General
As answers to all vendor questions submitted May 7 have not been received and are not scheduled for release until May 20, please provide vendors with a 106 day extension from the revised proposal Due Date given the scope and size of this critical LMR project.

Note: RFP Release Date 5/5/15 and revised Proposal Due date 6/15/15 allows the two LMR vendors that attended the Pre-bid meeting on May 8th, a total of 20 working days from the time the vendors submit final questions due on May 15th 2015. Note that vendors will not have responses to their initial submitted questions prior to the May 15th, 2015 deadline for questions. The Commonwealth’s responses to those questions may trigger the need for additional questions, and therefore we request another round of questions to be due 2 weeks after the Commonwealth responds to all questions submitted by prime contractors and their SDBs.

The Commonwealth has allowed less than 20 days without response to questions received on May 15th to design a State-wide communication system consisting of 67 counties. A single county RFP typically allows a vendor in the LMR industry 60-90 days for a response and a typical State- wide system would allow a minimum of 4 months for a response.

Additionally, as the Commonwealth is requiring Vendors to take responsibility for the spectrum needed to implement the design, Harris requests this extension to allow necessary time to complete due diligence in identification of frequency needs and spectrum usability (interference, intermodulation interference, licensability, etc.).
	
	Please refer to the Answer to Question Number 6.



	26. 
	I-13 (Page 3 of 70)
Small Diverse Business (SDB): The Commonwealth is requesting a significant commitment by the prime contractor to engage Small Diverse Businesses as a subcontractor and supplier. Note that the Commonwealth is allowing less than 20 days for a prime contractor to identify potential SDBs and for potential SDBs to review a scope of work from the prime contractor and provide a quotation for a State-wide design. In order to allow SDBs adequate time to respond to the prime contractor’s scope of work, additional time is requested from the current due date of June 15th 2015 (see item 2).
	
	Please refer to the Answer to Question Number 6.

	27. 
	II-5 Section A (2) (ii-iii) (Page 14 of 70)
Request the Commonwealth expand the minimum qualifications for prior vendor experience to include all frequencies bands and not limit the vendor’s response to the specific criteria of a “implemented a fully accepted VHF Public Safety radio system and a “implemented a fully accepted Phase II radio system which is a new technology.

Note: The Commonwealth’s existing radio system today consists of over 1,000 transmit sites utilizing existing licensed 800 MHz frequencies. Per the RFP vendor qualifications, our experience with the Commonwealth’ existing system for 15 years would not address the requirements stated in the RFP since it is not VHF system and is not a trunked radio system utilizing P25 Phase 2 technology.

Additionally, the Commonwealth has a large number of licensed 800 MHz frequencies today which the vendors are limited from utilizing for design consideration. Note that the majority of the existing trunked radio systems nationally utilize the 800 MHz spectrum and FDMA technology. The specific VHF band requirement and P25 Phase 2 (TDMA-new technology) for State wide limits the Commonwealth’s ability to gain an accurate assessment of a vendor qualification. Request that the specific VHF band and completed P25 Phase 2 language be removed from the RFP due to its restrictive language. Note that the Commonwealth does not have a significant number of licensed VHF frequencies for vendor design consideration.
	
	No, the Commonwealth will not expand the minimum qualifications for prior vendor experience to include all frequencies bands.


A fundamental objective of the RFP is to migrate from existing proprietary technology to P25 Phase 2 open standards technology with a goal of leveraging VHF spectrum.  The provided minimum qualifications are consistent with the Commonwealth’s needs and will not be changed.

	28. 
	General
Requesting confirmation that due to our history with the Commonwealth for the past 15 years and our experience (implanting over 1,000 sites and providing 24X7 maintenance) that we be considered a pre-qualified vendor in good standing by the Commonwealth.
	
	All Offerors are to comply with the qualification requirements of the RFP.  The Commonwealth will not prequalify potential Offerors.

	29. 
	General
Request the Commonwealth provide a list of prequalified Small Diverse Business (SDB) that meet the stated requirements and that have experience with implementing a VHF P25 Phase 2 state wide radio system.
	
	The Department’s directory of BSBO-verified minority, women, veteran and service disabled veteran-owned businesses can be accessed from the following link:   Searching for Small Diverse Businesses


	30. 
	II-13 Section B (Page 16 of 70)
Small Diverse Business Participation Submittal: Please extend the current due date by 106 days to allow SDBs adequate time to provide quotations to the prime contractor for consideration, and therefore allow prime contractors the opportunity to identify best value SDBs to participate and to obtain a signed letter of intent per sub section (2)(vi.). (Refer to item 2 and 3)
	
	Please refer to the Answer to Question Number 6.

	31. 
	Section IV-3 B (1) (iii) (page 26 of 70)
Please confirm that vendor’s are permitted and free to utilize all frequency bands/spectrum available for design consideration per the following language: “The intent of this RFP document is to allow Offerors to propose the best equipment, technology, and methods available to provide a state-of-the-art public safety communications system of the highest quality and performance”.
	
	Yes, Offerors are permitted to use all frequency bands/spectrum that they determine to be available and licensable in the name of the Commonwealth for their proposed design.

	32. 
	Section IV-3 B (1) iv) (a) (Page 27 of 70)
Request the language be expanded to allow vendors to repurpose the existing OpenSky and other existing equipment to allow maximum leveraging of the Commonwealth’s investment of over $150 Million dollars in infrastructure and subscriber radios in order to reduce the cost to the tax payers of the Commonwealth and to not limit the vendor’s ability to utilize existing assets.
	
	Repurposing of existing OpenSky and other existing equipment is permitted provided the equipment is reconfigurable to be P25 Phase 2 compliant.  To the Commonwealth’s knowledge, the only equipment that falls into this category is the equipment set forth in Section IV-3 B (1)(iv)(a).

	33. 
	Section -3 B (1) (iv) (a) (Page 27 of 70)
Are the existing 140 Motorola GTR 8000 base stations P25 Phase 1 compliant and P25 Phase 2 (TDMA) ready today? Please provide the date the GTR 8000 base stations were purchased, number of base station at each sites, the current warranty status (number of years left ), and if a maintenance program has been purchased, the number of years remaining on the contract.
	
	The existing GTR 8000 base stations are currently deployed in mixed configurations of analog and P25 CAI and are capable of reflashing/ reprogramming to P25 Phase 2 TDMA operation.  The existing GTR 8000 base stations were purchased to comply with the nationwide narrowbanding mandate.  PSP was granted an extension by the FCC to complete deployment of  GTR 8000 base stations to comply with the mandate.  At each applicable site (reference Appendix I, Candidate SitesList, column I, shelter owner PSP), 1 GTR base station is installed.  The warranty expires on July 1, 2015 and GTRs are covered for four (4) more years under an existing maintenance contract.

	34. 
	Section IV-2 C (Page 25 of 70)
Please provide the Commonwealth’s anticipated completion dates for all stages outlined in this section and the expected sign off date of the requested radio system for scheduling purposes (task, milestones, start, and end dates, task predecessors, and task owners based on WBS ) for prime contractor and participating SDB (subcontractors).
	
	The Commonwealth is relying on Offerors to submit a preliminary project schedule with detailed Gantt chart for the Offerors proposed system roll out, including the Pilot Program.

	35. 
	General
Microwave: Please provide the latest drawings and per site build-out of the Commonwealth’s existing Alcatel network, including any planned or on-going expansion of the microwave network for vendor design consideration.
	
	Please refer to  Appendix I, Candidate SitesList, column D, Connectivity.

	36. 
	Section IV-3 C (6) (ii) (Page 51 of 70)
As the Commonwealth is asking vendors to provide a design with capacity for both voice and data, we request that the Commonwealth provide data (number of messages, message sizes, etc.) to allow vendors to adequately size the design.
	
	Yes, the Commonwealth is asking for a design to support voice and data as follows:

AVL polling of voice users described in Table 3 of the RFP with a polling interval of 90 seconds with incoming message size of 90 bytes and outgoing message size of 90 bytes.

Mobile data users are 25% of the voice users in Table 3.  Mobile data transactions of 6 inbound messages per hour with each inbound message generating an outbound response.  Inbound message size of 200 bytes, outbound message size of 750 bytes.

	37. 
	Section IV-3 C (2) (Page 36 of 70)
Request the Commonwealth provide an estimate of how many talkgroups the ISSI must support.
	
	Offerors shall provide a total of 24 P25 Inter-RF Subsystem Interface (ISSI) to other systems.  Interfaces shall be sized and licensed to support a minimum of 10 simultaneous conversations per ISSI connection (total of 240 talkgroups)

	38. 
	Table 1, Item 28 (Page 36 of 70)
Requesting confirmation that the Commonwealth’s investment in over 600
interoperability talkpaths can be re-purposed to meet this requirement.
	
	Currently over 600 DVU interoperability gateways that are part of the existing system are at end of service parts support as of 2014 per manufacturer’s documentation.  As a result, the Commonwealth believes that this equipment cannot be re-purposed.

	39. 
	Table 1, Item 42 (Page 45 of 70)
We request that the requirement be modified to remove the need for the vehicular repeater to support data and to limit the number of portables that can connect to the Vehicular Repeater to 50
	
	The Commonwealth will not modify this requirement.  For clarification, Item 42 is referencing scene of incident mode or standalone “off network” mode.  Enhanced voice coverage to any number of “voice and data subscribers” is the requirement.  A “voice and data subscriber” is simply another term for a radio.  All modes of vehicular repeater operation shall support AES encryption.

	40. 
	Table 1, Item 43 (Page 45 of 70)
Request this requirement not be limited to a specific solution for talkgroup management, but rather a functional requirement for the Vehicular Repeater to allow operation on multiple talkgroups.
	
	This requirement is consistent with the Commonwealth’s needs and will not be changed.

	41. 
	IV-3 Section C (5)(ix) (Page 47 of 70)
Request the Commonwealth provide any additional licensed VHF frequencies beyond those identified in Appendix M, including any pending or future VHF and 700 MHz licenses for vendor consideration in the design.

	
	There are no additional VHF frequencies available for use at this time beyond those listed in Appendix M, Pennsylvania State Police (PSP) VHF Frequency Information,  The “state” 700MHz channel allocation for the Commonwealth under call sign WPTZ795 is available for consideration.

	42. 
	Page 47 (xi)
Request the Commonwealth identify the specific format for the GIS data to be provided
	
	The specific format for GIS data to be provided is the shapefile.  The shapefile format is a geospatial vector data format for geographic information system (GIS) software for data interoperability among GIS software products.

	43. 
	Page 46 (v)
Request the Commonwealth provide a list of all SRND sites that have structures, shelters, and generators for vendor's consideration in the design
	
	This information is provided in Appendix I, Candidate Sites List.

	44. 
	II-12 (Page 15 of 70)
This section states “all terms and conditions must appear in one integrated contract.” Does the Commonwealth require Offerors to submit a redlined Exhibit A, or provide additional terms and conditions in a separate document for future integration?
	
	As set forth in Section II-12 of the RFP, Objections and Additions to the IT Contract Terms and Conditions, “the Offeror will identify which, if any, of the terms and conditions (contained in Appendix A) it would like to negotiate and what additional terms and conditions the Offeror would like to add to the IT Contract Terms and Conditions.”  The Offeror may redline Appendix A and provide alternative language, or provide additional documents that it would like to be considered.  

Section II-12 of the RFP, however, also specifically states that, “[r]egardless of any objections set out in its proposal, the Offeror must submit its proposal, including the cost proposal, on the basis of the terms and conditions set out in Appendix A.  The Issuing Office will reject any proposal that is conditioned on the negotiation of the terms and conditions set out in Appendix A or to other provisions of the RFP as specifically identified above.”

	45. 
	III-4 (Page 15 of 70)
Can the Commonwealth confirm that the total number of available points are 1,000 (without consideration of the 3% bonus)?
	
	Yes, there are 1,000 total points allotted for evaluation, with 50% allotted to the technical submittal, 30% allotted to the cost submittal and 20% allotted to the SDB submittal.  The 3% bonus points for Domestic Workforce Utilization is not part of the 1,000 points. 

	46. 
	IV-2 Section C (Page 25 of 70)
Please define/clarify “roadway area”. We use the 2014 US Census Bureau Tiger Road Database. Roads are classified as Primary, Secondary, and Streets. Does the Commonwealth intend for all three classifications to be used to define “roadway areas” or alternatively can the Commonwealth provide a GIS file defining the roadways requiring coverage?
	
	Yes, the Commonwealth intends for all three (3) classifications to be used to define roadway areas.  

No, the Commonwealth will not provide a GIS file defining the roadways requiring coverage.

	47. 
	IV-4 (D)(vi)(b)(2) (Page 61 of 70)
Request the Commonwealth clarify the test tile size requirements for each County for subjective DAQ testing.
	
	For testing purposes, each County shall be divided into ¼-square mile bins (½-mile by ½-mile).  The selected Offeror or its subcontractor may subdivide grids if necessary to achieve statistical significance.

	48. 
	Sections I-8 and IV-3A; Appendix F
Can you please review and let me know if these redlines[to the Non-Disclosure Agreement] are acceptable?
	
	No, redlines to the Non-Disclosure Agreement are not acceptable.  The Non-Disclosure Agreement only pertains to information that the Commonwealth is providing to the Offeror.  The Offeror is not providing any information to the Commonwealth as a result of the Non-Disclosure Agreement. 

Information in the proposal is to be handled pursuant to the RFP at Section I-18, Proposal Contents, which addresses confidential information within proposal submissions, Commonwealth use of proposal submissions, and public disclosure of proposal submissions.  Any information included in Offeror’s proposal that Offeror considers to be trade secret or confidential or proprietary information should be identified in Appendix G, Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice as set forth in Sections 1-18 and 1-12.
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